
Town of Belgrade 
Planning Board 

Dec. 16, 2021 / 6 p.m. 
 

Belgrade Town Office 
990 Augusta Road 

Belgrade, ME 04917 
 

This meeting will be conducted in person.  
The public may also view the meeting and participate online at 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83033101494  

 

A G E N D A 
 
Call to order  

1. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Discussion and consideration of Commercial Development Review 

Ordinance amendments addressing commercial solar and wind facilities, 
and telecommunications towers. 

2. NEW BUSINESS 
A. SHORELAND APPLICATION – Applicant: Lakehouse Design Build. Owner: 

Michelle R. Davis. Location: 284 Sandy Cove Road (Long Pond), Map 20 Lot 
001. Purpose: Restructure interior and make new dormer in loft space, new 
windows, interior work. (non-conforming structure on a non-conforming lot) 

B. SHORELAND APPLICATION – Applicant: Paul and Carrie Dennis c/o Mark 
Gliniewicz. Agent: Jeff Allen. Location: 194 Sahagian Road (Great Pond), 
Map 29 Lot 12. Purpose: Demolition of two existing camps and construction 
of one replacement camp. (non-conforming structure on a non-conforming lot) 

C. Consideration of Dec. 2, 2021, Planning Board minutes. 
3. ADJOURN 

 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83033101494


 

 

Memo 
To: Planning Board 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: Dec. 16, 2021 

Re: Decommissioning language 

 

I spoke with Henry Clawson, who serves on the Readfield Planning Board and as 

the point person in the crafting of Readfield’s solar ordinance. Henry is a 

geophysicist by training and has worked on many green energy projects. He has 

graciously offered to attend one of your meetings to respond to questions and 

share what he knows about solar energy systems and their regulation. 

Henry said the 10-percent threshold that triggers decommissioning in Readfield’s 

ordinance represented in the minds of its Planning Board a point at which a solar 

farm may still be operational but no longer viable. Readfield Town Manager Eric 

Dyer told me the Town was mindful not to prematurely drive a farm out of 

business while also not allowing a development that is no longer viable to 

unnecessarily linger. Henry noted that power must be continuously generated for 

at least 12 months at more than 10 percent of the permitted capacity, and that 

Readfield’s ordinance allows for the array’s owner to challenge the Town’s 

assertion. He said confirmation of how much power a development is producing 

can be obtained either through CMP or the Public Utility Commission (though 

receiving information from the latter may be slower).  

He also noted a key provision of Readfield’s ordinance is a limitation on the 

percentage of lot coverage for a solar energy system. This was a move to protect 

some of Readfield’s farmland and fields. For systems defined as large or 

medium, that’s a maximum of 20 percent of a lot (Section 7, paragraph 1 on page 

5). The setback is 200 feet from all property lines (paragraph 4 on page 7) – a 

stricter standard than in Readfield’s other land use ordinances – and maximum 

heights are 10 feet. For small energy systems, coverage may not exceed 10 

percent of a lot and setbacks are 50 feet on the side and rear, and whatever the 

zoning district requires in the front (paragraphs 1 and 2 on page 7). Maximum 

heights also must conform with zoning district requirements. He also mentioned a 

prohibition along Readfield’s major thoroughfares, though I could not find that in 

the ordinance. 

I recommend inviting Mr. Clawson to an upcoming meeting – perhaps on Jan. 6 – 

so you can ask him questions that will help you gain a greater understanding of 

solar energy systems and ways that they can be smartly regulated.  



Page 1 of 3 
 

DISCUSSION DOCUMENT 
Siting and Other Prohibitions  

for New Utility Scale Solar Facilities  
Dec. 16, 2021, Planning Board Meeting 

The net effect of the following siting prohibitions would be to prohibit development of a 
utility scale solar facility on approximately 56% of Belgrade’s land area (based on the 
Comprehensive Plan’s GIS mapping of its land use districts) in the following land use 
districts: 

Shoreland Zone – 11% 
Village – 4% 
Critical Resource Conservation – 20% 
Residential/Mixed Use – 21% 

Utility Scale Solar Facilities would be allowed on approximately 44% of Belgrade’s land 
area, if the Commercial Development Review Ordinance’s performance standards are 
met, in the following land use districts: 

Rural District – 41% 
General Development – 2%1 

For descriptions and locations of the 2014 Comprehensive Plan’s different land use 
districts and the recommended land uses in each, see Chapter 14 Land Use Plan of the 
Plan on the Town website.  
https://www.townofbelgrade.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif2791/f/uploads/belgrade_comprehen
sive_plan_final_.pdf 

Currently the Commercial Development ordinance does not have any siting prohibitions 
for other types of new non-residential, commercial or industrial development; only 
performance standards.  The only existing land use/zoning limitations on allowable land 
uses are in the Shoreland Zone. 

 
Utility Scale Solar Facilities: 

1. Siting prohibitions.  The development or construction of a utility scale solar facility 
shall be prohibited in the following locations: 
1.1. The Shoreland Zone as mapped in the Belgrade Shoreland Zoning Ordinance 

map. 
1.2. The Village and Critical Resource Conservation Districts as described and 

mapped by the Belgrade Comprehensive Plan. 

 
1 Does not add up to 100% due to rounding of numbers. 

https://www.townofbelgrade.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif2791/f/uploads/belgrade_comprehensive_plan_final_.pdf
https://www.townofbelgrade.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif2791/f/uploads/belgrade_comprehensive_plan_final_.pdf


Page 2 of 3 
 

1.3. The Residential/Mixed Use District as described and mapped by the Belgrade 
Comprehensive Plan, except for the construction and maintenance of a vehicle 
access road and electrical transmission line to the solar facility. 
 
Explanation:  Attempt to avoid nuisances and minimize conflicts with existing 
land uses as well as protect conservation lands. Net effect is to guide large scale 
solar farms to more appropriate land areas in Belgrade, including impaired lands 
like played out gravel pits or the Town’s solid waste landfill, and the General 
Development and the Rural Districts as identified by the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

1.4. On prime farmland soils and soils of statewide importance as determined in 
accordance with the Maine Department of Agriculture, Conservation and 
Forestry technical guidance document entitled “Determining Prime Farmland 
Soils and Soils of Statewide Significance for Siting Solar Projects in Maine”, May 
2020.  

 
Explanation:  The development of this technical guidance was required as part 
of the 2019 state legislation to encourage the development of solar energy, while 
avoiding development of solar energy generating facilities on soils better suited 
for agriculture.  This guidance allows up to 10% of a solar project to cover prime 
agricultural soils.  The above prohibits entirely instead.  Not even sure any prime 
farmland soils will ever be found in Belgrade (why larger scale crop land did not 
survive in Belgrade?), unlike say Farmington, the Saco River valley, 
Androscoggin River valley, or Aroostook County.  Here is a link to the document 
if you wish to review.  https://www.maine.gov/dacf/ard/resources/docs/prime-
farmland-determination-guidelines-v6.pdf 
 

1.5. Within 250 feet of habitat for high value plant and animal species identified and 
mapped by the Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife’s Beginning 
with Habitat program, including but not limited to habitat for state or federal 
endangered species, significant vernal pools and high or moderate value 
waterfowl and wading bird habitats. 

1.6. Within 1,320 feet of an area identified and mapped by the Department of Inland 
Fisheries and Wildlife as a high or moderate value deer wintering area. 

1.7. Within 75 feet of wetlands included in the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s 
National Wetland Inventory. 

1.8. Within 75 feet of rivers, streams or brooks as defined in 38 M.R.S.A, subsection 
480-B(9). 
 
Explanation:  If allow in Rural District which accounts for approximately 41% of 
Belgrade’s land area, 1.4 – 1.7 needed to keep development of these facilities 
out of sensitive lands and habitats that may be found in the Rural District and to 
generally minimize impact on environment and wildlife/unique plant habitats by 

https://www.maine.gov/dacf/ard/resources/docs/prime-farmland-determination-guidelines-v6.pdf
https://www.maine.gov/dacf/ard/resources/docs/prime-farmland-determination-guidelines-v6.pdf


Page 3 of 3 
 

complimenting the ordinance’s performance standards.   
 

2. Other prohibitions 

The development or construction of thermal and hot water solar energy systems 
are prohibited. 
 
Explanation:  During the discussion of Solar Field’s proposed CDRO ordinance 
permit application, some members of the Planning Board and abutters voiced 
concern about “frying birds”. That is not possible by photovoltaic solar panels 
used in Maine solar facilities, but rarely has been an issue with thermal or hot 
water systems which concentrate or reflect light to convert water to steam for 
energy production and made a splash in some news media outlets.  These 
facilities consume large volumes of water which raises other significant issues.  
No such facilities now exist in Maine or New England, and may never ever be 
proposed since usually located in areas closer to the equator.  This prohibition 
may consequently be unneeded as a practical matter.   
 
 
 

 

 

 



From: George Seel
To: Anthony Wilson; Peter Rushton; perushton@roadrunner.com; peter.rushton@maine.gov

<peter.rushton@maine.gov>
Subject: RE: Which other Maine municipalities have solar energy generation facility specific regulations?
Date: Wednesday, December 8, 2021 10:16:05 AM
Attachments: Municipal and model ordinance summary table.docx

EXTERNAL MESSAGE:
Andrew Marble, the Rome CEO, provided me with a copy of Rome’s 2003 Commercial Review
Ordinance, allowing me to update the table I provided previously to include Rome.  Now Rome,
Oakland, Sidney and Mt. Vernon of the Belgrade Lakes watershed municipalities are included in the
table showing whether they specifically regulate solar energy facilities.  The updated table is
attached.
 
Sent from Mail for Windows
 

From: George Seel
Sent: Monday, December 6, 2021 6:13 PM
To: Anthony Wilson; Peter Rushton; Peter Rushton; peter.rushton@maine.gov
<peter.rushton@maine.gov>
Subject: Which other Maine municipalities have solar energy generation facility specific regulations?
 
Anthony and Peter,
 
I found our last PB meeting discussion of regulating solar farms quite frustrating – the expression
“the blind leading the blind” comes to mind.  Because of Board members’ lack of knowledge (myself
included) of how solar generating facilities actually work there was too much reliance on personal
bias and too little on sound information. 
 
I thought I would benefit from getting smarter at least about how other Maine municipalities are
addressing the issue, in particular other lake and second home/tourism communities where the
visual impact of a large solar farm or similar other commercial development may be of concern.  In
addition to the towns in our watershed (still trying to find Rome’s Commercial Development Review
Ordinance), I looked at the ordinances from the Sebago Lake area communities, as well as Rangeley
and Greenville.  Then a few coastal towns – Rockland, Rockport and Camden; and a few towns from
the “other Maine”, the Portland suburbs. I specifically looked to see how other municipalities or
model ordinances/guidelines addressed the potential for visual impact on lakes and other
recreational resources; and then whether if I could find any towns other than Readfield that require
decommissioning prior to a facility fully ceasing production or sale of electricity to the grid.  The
attached table summarizes what I found.  No doubt there are other municipalities regulating the
development of new solar energy generating facilities out there.
 
This exercise has already served its purpose for me, but if you feel other Board members or our
discussion of how to regulate solar energy facilities would benefit from this information, feel free to
forward to the full Board or include in our next meeting packet.  I assume we will take up the
discussion of when to require decommissioning again with benefit of the basis for Readfield’s 10% of
capacity threshold, in addition to siting standards for new facilities.

mailto:georgeseel@outlook.com
mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:perushton@gmail.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user292da846
mailto:Peter.Rushton@maine.gov
mailto:Peter.Rushton@maine.gov
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986
mailto:georgeseel@outlook.com
mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:perushton@gmail.com
mailto:perushton@roadrunner.com
mailto:Peter.Rushton@maine.gov
mailto:Peter.Rushton@maine.gov







Survey of Municipal and Model Ordinance Requirements Specific to Commercial Solar Energy Producing Developments [footnoteRef:1] [1:  Includes lake communities including those in the watershed of the Belgrade Lakes as well as other some coastal towns.] 






		





Municipality

		Have regulations or performance standards specific to development of solar energy facilities?[footnoteRef:2] [2:  If no, solar facilities regulated by same standards and requirements applicable to other commercial developments] 


		How address visual impact potential?  Prohibit when visible from great pond or other natural resource?

		Require decommissioning prior to discontinuing operation or sale of electricity to grid?

		





Explanations/notes



		Oakland 

		Yes

		Requires vegetative buffers along public roads and property lines. 

		No

		



		Sidney

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Rome

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Mt. Vernon

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Smithfield[footnoteRef:3] [3:  Ordinances not available on website] 


		?

		?

		?

		



		

		

		

		

		



		Manchester

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Monmouth

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Readfield

		Yes

		Vegetative screening of public roads & residences

		Yes

		Requires facility decommissioning when electricity generation reduced to 10% of full capacity



		Winthrop

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Fayette

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Wayne

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		

		

		

		

		



		Bridgton

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Naples

		Yes

		Vegetative buffers along 

		No

		



		





Municipality

		Have regulations or performance standards specific to development of solar energy facilities?[footnoteRef:4] [4:  If no, solar facilities regulated by same standards and requirements applicable to other commercial developments] 


		How address visual impact potential?  Prohibit when visible from great pond or other natural resource?

		Require decommissioning prior to discontinuing operation or sale of electricity to grid?

		





Explanations/notes



		

		

		public roads and property lines

		

		



		[bookmark: _Hlk89700257]

		

		

		

		



		Casco

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Windham

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Harrison

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		

		

		

		

		



		China

		No 

		NA

		NA

		



		Vassalboro

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		

		

		

		

		



		Rangeley

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Greenville

		Yes

		Prohibit in Resource Protection and Rural Zones, and areas >2 acres of >20% slope

		No

		Included in town-wide zoning ordinance



		

		

		

		

		



		Camden

		No

		NA

		NA

		Zoning prohibits all commercial development at elevations >500’ & slopes >25% to mitigate visual impact



		Rockport

		Yes

		Doesn’t/No

		No

		



		Rockland

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		

		

		

		

		



		Cape Elizabeth

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Falmouth

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		Yarmouth

		No

		NA

		NA

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		





Municipality

		Have regulations or performance standards specific to development of solar energy facilities?[footnoteRef:5] [5:  If no, solar facilities regulated by same standards and requirements applicable to other commercial developments] 


		How address visual impact potential?  Prohibit when visible from great pond or other natural resource?

		Require decommissioning prior to discontinuing operation or sale of electricity to grid?

		





Explanations/notes



		Waterville

		Yes

		Vegetative screening required along public roads and property lines



		No

		Contained in city zoning ordinance



		Augusta

		No

		NA

		NA

		Recently enacted moratorium while develop solar development ordinance



		Chelsea

		Yes

		Vegetative screening of public roads & residences

		No

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		Model Ordinances/Ordinance Development Guidelines

		

		

		

		



		KVCOG

		Yes

		Visual impact/

Viewshed analysis

		No

		Provides general guidelines for PB’s determination if impact unacceptable



		NRCM/Maine Audubon

		Yes

		Vegetative screening

		No

		



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		













Page 2 of 2

As of 12/8/21





 
George
 
Sent from Mail for Windows
 
 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Page 1 of 3 
As of 12/8/21 

 

Survey of Municipal and Model Ordinance Requirements Specific to Commercial 
Solar Energy Producing Developments 1 

 

 

 
 
 

Municipality 

Have 
regulations or 
performance 

standards 
specific to 

development 
of solar energy 

facilities?2 

How address 
visual impact 

potential?  
Prohibit when 

visible from 
great pond or 
other natural 

resource? 

Require 
decommissioning 

prior to 
discontinuing 

operation or sale 
of electricity to 

grid? 

 
 
 

Explanations/notes 

Oakland  Yes Requires 
vegetative 

buffers along 
public roads 
and property 

lines.  

No  

Sidney No NA NA  
Rome No NA NA  
Mt. Vernon No NA NA  
Smithfield3 ? ? ?  
     
Manchester No NA NA  
Monmouth No NA NA  
Readfield Yes Vegetative 

screening of 
public roads & 

residences 

Yes Requires facility 
decommissioning 
when electricity 

generation reduced 
to 10% of full 

capacity 
Winthrop No NA NA  
Fayette No NA NA  
Wayne No NA NA  
     
Bridgton No NA NA  
Naples Yes Vegetative 

buffers along  
No  

 
1 Includes lake communities including those in the watershed of the Belgrade Lakes as well as other some coastal 
towns. 
2 If no, solar facilities regulated by same standards and requirements applicable to other commercial 
developments 
3 Ordinances not available on website 



Page 2 of 3 
As of 12/8/21 

 

 
 
 

Municipality 

Have 
regulations or 
performance 

standards 
specific to 

development 
of solar energy 

facilities?4 

How address 
visual impact 

potential?  
Prohibit when 

visible from 
great pond or 
other natural 

resource? 

Require 
decommissioning 

prior to 
discontinuing 

operation or sale 
of electricity to 

grid? 

 
 
 

Explanations/notes 

  public roads 
and property 

lines 

  

     
Casco No NA NA  
Windham No NA NA  
Harrison No NA NA  
     
China No  NA NA  
Vassalboro No NA NA  
     
Rangeley No NA NA  
Greenville Yes Prohibit in 

Resource 
Protection and 

Rural Zones, 
and areas >2 

acres of >20% 
slope 

No Included in town-
wide zoning 
ordinance 

     
Camden No NA NA Zoning prohibits all 

commercial 
development at 

elevations >500’ & 
slopes >25% to 
mitigate visual 

impact 
Rockport Yes Doesn’t/No No  
Rockland No NA NA  
     
Cape Elizabeth No NA NA  
Falmouth No NA NA  
Yarmouth No NA NA  
     
     
     

 
4 If no, solar facilities regulated by same standards and requirements applicable to other commercial 
developments 



Page 3 of 3 
As of 12/8/21 

 

 
 
 

Municipality 

Have 
regulations or 
performance 

standards 
specific to 

development 
of solar energy 

facilities?5 

How address 
visual impact 

potential?  
Prohibit when 

visible from 
great pond or 
other natural 

resource? 

Require 
decommissioning 

prior to 
discontinuing 

operation or sale 
of electricity to 

grid? 

 
 
 

Explanations/notes 

Waterville Yes Vegetative 
screening 

required along 
public roads 
and property 

lines 
 

No Contained in city 
zoning ordinance 

Augusta No NA NA Recently enacted 
moratorium while 

develop solar 
development 

ordinance 
Chelsea Yes Vegetative 

screening of 
public roads & 

residences 

No  

     
     
     
Model 
Ordinances/Ordinance 
Development 
Guidelines 

    

KVCOG Yes Visual impact/ 
Viewshed 
analysis 

No Provides general 
guidelines for PB’s 
determination if 

impact 
unacceptable 

NRCM/Maine 
Audubon 

Yes Vegetative 
screening 

No  

     
     

 

 

 
5 If no, solar facilities regulated by same standards and requirements applicable to other commercial 
developments 











































Belgrade Planning Board 
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law 

 
Application for Shoreland Permit 

 
APPLICANT: ____________________________________ 

ADDRESS: _____________________________________________ 
TAX MAP # ___ LOT # ___ 

 
I.  Findings of Fact 

The Applicants on DATE applied for a shoreland permit for _________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________(PROJECT DETAILS).  

The application was presented to the Planning Board on ____________________________________________ 
________ (DATE, WITH DATES OF ANY SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS AT WHICH THE APPLICATION 
WAS CONSIDERED). These Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were developed in conjunction with 
consideration of the permit application. 

II.  Conclusions of Law 

Based upon the application materials, testimony, statements, evidence, documents and other materials submitted 
to it and the above Findings of Fact, the Belgrade Planning Board finds that the Project is/is not a permitted 
___________________________________________________________________________________ (USE) 
under Section 14, Table 1 in the Ordinance, and further makes the following conclusions based on the 
applicable provisions in Section 16(D) of the Ordinance: 

1. Will maintain safe and healthful conditions. 
• By a vote of X-X, the Board found this standard was/was not met based on _________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

2. Will not result in water pollution, erosion, or sedimentation to surface waters. 
• By a vote of X-X, the Board found this standard was/was not met based on _________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

3. Will adequately provide for the disposal of all wastewater. 
• By a vote of X-X, the Board found this standard was/was not met based on _________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

4. Will not have an adverse impact on spawning grounds, fish, aquatic life, bird or other wildlife habitat. 
• By a vote of X-X, the Board found this standard was/was not met based on _________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

5. Will conserve shore cover and visual, as well as actual, points of access to inland waters. 
• By a vote of X-X, the Board found this standard was/was not met based on _________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

6. Will protect archaeological and historic resources as designated in the comprehensive plan. 
• By a vote of X-X, the Board found this standard was/was not met based on _________________ 



______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

7. Will avoid problems associated with flood plain development and use. 
• By a vote of X-X, the Board found this standard was/was not met based on _________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

8. Is in conformance with the provisions of Section 15, Land Use Standards, 
• By a vote of X-X the Board found that this standard was met based on evidence in the record and 

further as follows: 
 

A. Minimum Lot Standards _________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

B. Principal and Accessory Structures _________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

C. Campgrounds __________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

D. Individual Private Campsites ______________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

E. Commercial and Industrial Uses ___________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

F. Parking Areas __________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

G. Roads and Driveways ___________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

H. Signs _________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

I. Storm Water Runoff _____________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

J. Septic Waste Disposal Systems ____________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

K. Essential Services _______________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

L. Mineral Exploration and Extraction _________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

M. Agriculture ____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

N. Timber Harvesting and Land Management Roads _____________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

O. Clearing or Removal of Vegetation for Activities other than Timber Harvesting _____________ 
______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

P. Hazard Trees, Storm Damaged Trees and Dead Tree Removal ___________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

Q. Exemptions to Clearing and Vegetation Removal Requirements __________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

R. Revegetation Requirements _______________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

S. Erosion and Sedimentation Control _________________________________________________ 



_____________________________________________________________________________. 
T. Shoreline Stabilization ___________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________.  
U. Soils _________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________. 
V. Water Quality __________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________. 
W. Historical and Archaeological Sites _________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________. 
X. Resource Protection _____________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________. 

Conditions of Approval Needed to Meet Required Belgrade SLZ Ordinance Findings in Section 16(D): 

1. Manage stormwater run-off from new or expanded structure(s) in accordance with Section 15(I) of the 
Belgrade Shoreland Zoning Ordinance and the Maine Department of Environmental Protection’s (DEP) 
Best Management Practices as outlined in the Conservation Practices for Homeowner’s publication.  
Such measures are to be put in place prior to building use. NOTE: This is a standing condition that 
applies to all permits unless deemed unnecessary by the Planning Board, based on the following 
rationale.  
 
Rationale: ___________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________.  
 

2. ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________. 
 

Rationale: ___________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________. 

 
3. ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________. 
 

Rationale: ___________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



III. Decision.

Based on the above findings of fact and conclusions of law, on _______________(DATE), the Town of 
Belgrade Planning Board approved by a vote of _______________ the Shoreland Permit application of 
_______________________________ (APPLICANT’S NAME) With the above conditions, and at a meeting 
on _______________(DATE), developed these written Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and adopted 
these findings on _______________(DATE). 

Dated _______________ 

BELGRADE PLANNING BOARD 

BY:   _______________________________________________________ 
Peter Rushton, Chair 

NOTE: The Maine Department of Environmental Protection’s stormwater best management practices are 
posted at townofbelgrade.com/bmps. 





















































 

Town of Belgrade 
Planning Board 

Dec. 2, 2021 / 6 p.m. 
 

Belgrade Town Office 
990 Augusta Road 

Belgrade, ME 04917 
 

This meeting was conducted in person. This meeting was also on Zoom and can be viewed at: 
 

M I N U T E S 
 
Present:  Planning Board members Chairman Peter Rushton, George Seel, Rich Baker, Craig Alexander, Sara 
Languet, Town Manager Anthony Wilson, Planning Board Secretary Julie Morrison, Shawn Grant/Brightside, 
Thomas Sidar. 
 
Meeting was called to order by Chairman Peter Rushton at 6:02 p.m. 
 

1. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Discussion and Consideration of proposed subdivision ordinance rewrite. 

Rich Baker discovered some typos that Anthony Wilson will correct and a couple housekeeping 
corrections. Anthony Wilson will ask the Town Attorney to define “Horizon Year” and the 
executive summary completed by Charles from KVCOG will be used. Motion by Rich Baker to 
submit to the Selectboard for approval with corrections made – 2nd by George Seel 5-0 passed. 
The proposed subdivision ordinance rewrite will be on the Selectboard agenda Tuesday Dec. 7, 
2021, at 6:30 p.m. Some of the Planning Board Members agreed to be at the meeting, in person 
and on Zoom.  

B. Discussion and consideration of Commercial Development Review Ordinance amendments 
addressing: 
1. Phosphorous export standards. 
2. Commercial solar and wind facilities, and telecommunications towers. 
Discussions regarding Solar ending with Anthony Wilson looking into it more with Chelsea’s 
ordinance and other avenues. Next meeting will be discussing Section 6.  Anthony will search and 
find the definitions and hon in what is in Sections 6 before the next meeting. 

       2.    NEW BUSINESS 
 A. SHORELAND APPLICATION- Applicant and owner: Thomas and Ellen Sidar. Location:   Golden Pond 
Road (Great Pond), Map 9 Lot 39. Purpose: Repair and expand porch by 4 square feet. (non-conforming 
structure on a conforming lot) 
After some discussion Mr. Sidar changed the word repair and replaced it with replace on the original 
application. The expanded size was also decided to not be 4 square feet it was adding 2 feet two 
sides. Mr. Sidar also added 5430 sq. ft. to #8 on the original application. Finding or facts were 
completed. Motion by Rich Baker to approve the application with the changes noted and 1 condition 



 
– 2nd by Craig Alexander. Condition is to follow DEP best stormwater practices. 5-0 application 
approved. 
 
B. Consideration of Nov. 18, 2021, Planning Board Minutes. 
By suggestion of Rich Baker and George Seel change wording to “Board decided to change to 7 
acres” Motion by George Seel and 2nd by Craig Alexander to approve Nov. 18, 2021, Planning Board 
minutes as amended. 5-0 amended minutes approved.  
 
Craig Alexander brought up the question “What is the standard for Medical marijuana grow facilities in 
Belgrade.” The Board decided to bring that question to Town Manager Anthony Wilson.  
George Seel briefly spoke about new well and contamination, This will be discussed with Town 
Manager Anthony Wilson.  

3.          ADJOURN 
 MOTION TO ADJOURN- ALL IN FAVOR -MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:15 p.m.  

 


	Dec. 16, 2021, Planning Board agenda
	decommissioning memo
	solar
	solar
	Siting Prohibitions CDRO Solar Farms
	RE_ Which other Maine municipalities have solar energy generation facility specific regulations_

	Municipal and model ordinance summary table (002)

	lakehouse design
	doc02934120211209114836
	lakehouse design
	lakehouse design
	lakehouse 1
	lakehouse 2
	lakehouse drawing

	SZO findings of fact template (fillable)


	194 sahagian road
	Dec. 2 2021 draft minutes

	APPLICANT: 
	ADDRESS: 
	TAX MAP: 
	LOT: 
	The Applicants on DATE applied for a shoreland permit for: 
	PROJECT DETAILS: 
	The application was presented to the Planning Board on: 
	DATE WITH DATES OF ANY SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS AT WHICH THE APPLICATION: 
	USE: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 1: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 2: 
	2 Will not result in water pollution erosion or sedimentation to surface waters: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 1_2: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 2_2: 
	3 Will adequately provide for the disposal of all wastewater: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 1_3: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 2_3: 
	4 Will not have an adverse impact on spawning grounds fish aquatic life bird or other wildlife habitat: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 1_4: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 2_4: 
	5 Will conserve shore cover and visual as well as actual points of access to inland waters: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 1_5: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 2_5: 
	6 Will protect archaeological and historic resources as designated in the comprehensive plan: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on: 
	undefined: 
	7 Will avoid problems associated with flood plain development and use: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 1_6: 
	By a vote of XX the Board found this standard waswas not met based on 2_6: 
	8 Is in conformance with the provisions of Section 15 Land Use Standards: 
	undefined_2: 
	B Principal and Accessory Structures: 
	undefined_3: 
	C Campgrounds: 
	undefined_4: 
	D Individual Private Campsites: 
	undefined_5: 
	E Commercial and Industrial Uses: 
	undefined_6: 
	F Parking Areas: 
	undefined_7: 
	G Roads and Driveways: 
	undefined_8: 
	H Signs: 
	undefined_9: 
	Storm Water Runoff: 
	undefined_10: 
	Septic Waste Disposal Systems: 
	undefined_11: 
	K Essential Services: 
	undefined_12: 
	L Mineral Exploration and Extraction: 
	undefined_13: 
	M Agriculture: 
	undefined_14: 
	N Timber Harvesting and Land Management Roads: 
	undefined_15: 
	O Clearing or Removal of Vegetation for Activities other than Timber Harvesting: 
	undefined_16: 
	undefined_17: 
	P Hazard Trees Storm Damaged Trees and Dead Tree Removal: 
	undefined_18: 
	Q Exemptions to Clearing and Vegetation Removal Requirements: 
	undefined_19: 
	R Revegetation Requirements: 
	undefined_20: 
	S Erosion and Sedimentation Control: 
	undefined_21: 
	undefined_22: 
	T Shoreline Stabilization: 
	undefined_23: 
	U Soils: 
	undefined_24: 
	V Water Quality: 
	undefined_25: 
	W Historical and Archaeological Sites: 
	undefined_26: 
	X Resource Protection: 
	undefined_27: 
	Rationale: 
	undefined_28: 
	2: 
	undefined_29: 
	Rationale_2: 
	undefined_30: 
	3: 
	undefined_31: 
	Rationale_3: 
	undefined_32: 
	Based on the above findings of fact and conclusions of law on: 
	Belgrade Planning Board approved by a vote of: 
	APPLICANTS NAME With the above conditions and at a meeting: 
	on: 
	these findings on: 
	Dated: 
	BY: 


